
 
AGENDA 

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 11, 2023 

11:00 A.M. 
 

AGENCY HEADQUARTERS 
BOARD ROOM 

6075 KIMBALL AVENUE, BUILDING A 
 CHINO, CALIFORNIA 91708 

VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG  
TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 909 180 711# 

 
PURSUANT TO AB361 AND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-12-6 ADOPTED BY THE IEUA BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS ON DECEMBER 21, 2022, IEUA BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE 
TO BE CONDUCTED THROUGH TELECONFERENCE. 

 
The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by dialing the number 

provided above.   Comments may also be submitted by email to the Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Denise Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public Comment section of the 

meeting. Comments will be distributed to the Board of Directors. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager prior to the public comment section or request to address 
the Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to three 
minutes per speaker.  Thank you. 

 

 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous 
vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action 
came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 
 

 
*A Municipal Water District 
 
 

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


Finance and Administration Committee 
January 11, 2023 
Page 2 

1. CONSENT ITEMS

A. MINUTES
Approve Minutes of the December 14, 2022 Finance and Administration
Committee meeting.

B. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board approve the total
disbursements for the month of November 2022, in the amount of
$28,825,460.19

C. RP-1 AND RP-4 GENERATOR CONTROL RETROFITS 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 

1. Approve the construction contract change order for the RP-1 and RP-
4 Generator Retrofits, Project No. EN22034, to Big Sky Electric, for an
additional amount of $158,000, increasing the contract amount to
$333,100 (90%);

2. Approve a total project budget augmentation in the amount of
$200,000 to the RP-1 and RP-4 Generator Retrofits, Project No.
EN22034, increasing the budget from $240,000 to $440,000 in the
Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) Fund; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order and total
project budget increase, subject to non-substantive changes.

D. PRESERVE LIFT STATION IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACT AWARD
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board:

1. Award a construction contract for the Preserve Lift Station
Improvements, Project No. EN23066, to Tharsos Inc., for the amount
of $781,000;

2. Approve a total project budget and FY 22/23 project budget
augmentation in the amount of $595,000 to Project No. EN23066
increasing the budget from $455,000 to $1,050,000 in the Regional
Operations and Maintenance (10800) Fund; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract
and budget augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes.



Finance and Administration Committee  
January 11, 2023 
Page 3 
  

2. ACTION ITEM 
 

A. NORTH SYSTEM NORTH TRUNK (NSNT) SEWER SIPHON 
REPLACEMENT CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 
 

1. Award a construction contract for the NSNT Sewer Siphon 
Replacement, Project No. EN20064, to Ferreira Construction Co., for 
the amount of $2,686,640; 
 

2. Approve a total project budget augmentation in the amount of 
$1,387,853 to the NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement, Project No. 
EN20064, increasing the budget from $3,112,147 to $4,500,000 in the 
Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (10500) Fund; and 

 

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract 
and budget augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
 

3. INFORMATION ITEM 
 

RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEM 
 

A. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/ 
POWERPOINT) 
 
 

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
 

 

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

ADJOURN  
 

DECLARATION OF POSTING  
I, Denise Garzaro, CMC, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water 
District, hereby certify that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the 
Agency’s main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at 
least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at (909) 993-1736 or 
dgarzaro@ieua.org, 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


Finance and Administration Committee 

 
  
 

             1A 

 

  CONSENT 

                         ITEM 



 

 

 
 

MINUTES 
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION  

COMMITTEE MEETING 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*  

AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CA 
 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2022 
11:00 A.M. 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference  

Paul Hofer, Chair  
Marco Tule, Director 
 

STAFF PRESENT 
Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I  
Michael Larios, Technology Specialist I  

 Alex Lopez, Acting Budget Officer 
 Alyson Piguee, Director of External & Government Affairs  
 Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit  
     

STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference 
Christiana Daisy, P.E., Deputy General Manager 

 Deborah Berry, Controller  
Jerry Burke, Director of Engineering 
Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Director of Finance 
Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources 

 Michael Hurley, Director of Planning & Resources 
 Jennifer Hy-Luk, Executive Assistant 
 Cathleen Pieroni, Senior Policy Advisor 

   Yvonne Taylor, Administrative Assistant II 
   

CALL TO ORDER 
Committee Chair Paul Hofer called the meeting to order at 11:02 a.m.  
 
There were no public comments received or additions to the agenda. 
 
1A – 1C. CONSENT ITEMS 
The Committee: 

 Approved Minutes of the November 9, 2022 Finance and Administration Committee 
meeting.  
 

 Recommended that the Board approve the total disbursements for the month of October 
2022, in the amount of $24,401,932.26; 

 and 



Finance and Administration Committee 
December 14, 2022 
Page 2 

 

  

 
1. Approve the award to provide Agency-Wide and Laboratory Courier Service, 

Contract No. 4600003207, to Integrated Parcel Network dba Pacific Couriers, 
for a two-year contract, with three one-year renewal options, for a potential total 
contract term of five years for a not-to-exceed amount of $440,000; and 

 
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-

substantive changes. 
 

as a Consent Calendar items on the December 21, 2022 Board meeting agenda. 
 

 
2A. ACTION ITEM 
The Committee: 

 Recommended that the Board: 
 

1. Approve the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for fiscal year ended June 
30, 2022; 
 

2. Direct staff to distribute the report as appropriate, to the various federal, state, 
and local agencies, financial institutions, bond rating agencies, and other 
interested parties;  

 
3. Approve an interfund loan of $7,000,000 from Recycled Water Fund to the 

Recharge Water Fund to support the Recharge Master Plan Update projects 
execution until grants and State Revolving Fund loan proceeds from the State 
Water Resources Control Board are received by the Agency; and 

 
4. Authorize the General Manager to execute the inter-fund loan; 

 
as an Action item on the December 21, 2022 Board meeting agenda. 

 
 
3A – 3B. INFORMATION ITEM 
The following information item was received and filed by the Committee: 
 

 Fiscal Year 2022/23 First Quarter Budget Variance, Performance Updates, and Budget 
Transfers 

 Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs 
 
 

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
There were no General Manager comments. 
 
 
5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
There were no Committee member comments. 
 
 
6. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 



Finance and Administration Committee 
December 14, 2022 
Page 3 

 

  

There were no Committee member requested future agenda items. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business, Committee Chair Hofer adjourned the meeting at 11:23 a.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Denise Garzaro 
Board Secretary/Office Manager 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 
APPROVED:   JANUARY 11, 2023 



 Finance and Administration Committee 

 
  
 

             1B 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  CONSENT 

                         ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

January 18, 2023

Report on General Disbursements

Total disbursements for the month of November 2022 were $28,825,460.19. Disbursement
activity included check payments of $581,830.65 to vendors and $27,087.62 for worker's
compensation related costs. Electronic payments included the Automated Clearing House
(ACH) of $16,202,915.49 and wire transfers (excluding payroll) of $10,149,384.71. The total
payroll was $1,858,026.57 for employees and $6,215.15 for the Board of Directors.

Approve the total disbursements for the month of November 2022 in the amount of
$28,825,460.19.

01/11/23Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The report on general disbursements is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of Fiscal
Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for general disbursements
associated with operating requirements.

On December 21, 2022 the Board of Directors approved the October 2022 Report on General
Disbursements totaling $24,401,932.26.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Details of General Disbursements
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

23000



Page 1 of 1

Background
Subject: Report on General Disbursements

Table 1 summarizes the disbursements detailed in each of the six attachments affixed to this letter.
Table 2 lists the disbursements in excess of an aggregated $500,000 per vendor and is presented 
in largest to smallest dollar value.

Table 1:  Disbursement Details

Attachment Payment Type Amount
2A Vendor Checks $ 581,830.65
2B Workers' Comp Checks $ 27,087.62
2C Vendor ACHs $ 16,202,915.49
2D Vendor Wires (excludes Payroll) $ 10,149,384.71
2E Payroll-Net Pay-Directors $ 6,215.15
2F Payroll-Net Pay-Employees $ 1,858,026.57

Total Disbursements $28,825,460.19

Table 2:  Disbursements in Excess of $500,000 per Vendor

Vendor Amount Description

WM LYLES COMPANY $ 7,133,946.44 Professional Svc’s for EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd; 
EN19006- RP-5 Biosolids Facility.

CALPERS $ 4,500,000.00 Retirement Unfunded Liability

MWD $ 3,984,616.70 September 2022 Water Purchases

SO CALIF EDISON $ 867,745.61 9/02/22 – 11/02/22 Electricity

MNR CONSTRUCTION INC $ 812,400.23 Professional Svc’s for RW15003.06- Wineville/Jurupa/Force 
Main Improvements

INTERNAL REVENUE 
SERVICE $ 744,438.31 P/R 22, 23; Dir 11 Taxes

PERS $ 726,138.71 11/22 Health Ins; P/R 22, 23

PARSONS WATER & 
INFRUSTRUCTURE $ 668,666.92 Professional Svc’s for EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd; 

EN19006- RP-5 Biosolids Facility.









































































































































































IEUA’s Business Goal under Fiscal Responsibility



Finance and Administration Committee 

1C 

  CONSENT 

      ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

January 18, 2023

RP-1 and RP-4 Generator Retrofits Construction Contract Change Order

Regional Plant No. 4 is equipped with a 2,000 kW diesel generator. The generator provides
emergency power to the plant in case of a power failure. Big Sky Electric is under contract to
upgrade the obsolete Emergency Modular Control Panel (EMCP). During a site walk with the
contractor, the generator breaker was found in the failed position with no alarms in Supervisory
Control and Data Acquisition System (SCADA) to notify Operations. If there was a power
failure at this time, the generator would not provide power to the facility. Also, during the site
walk the power cables from the generator, which power the facility in an emergency, were found
to be compromised and must be replaced.
Staff negotiated a change order with Big Sky Electric for the not-to-exceed amount of $158,000,
to be tracked on time and material. If the entire NTE amount is added to the construction
contract, the contract will increase from $175,840 to $333,840 (90% increase). The change order
includes replacing the generator power cables, testing of the generator breaker, and renting a
temporary backup generator system for an additional two weeks during installation and testing.
In addition, a task order, in the amount of $32,000, will be issued to Technical Systems, Inc.
(TSI), through IEUA's Programming Master Services Agreements, to provide Operations the
generator's status on SCADA. These changes will address the safety concern.

1. Approve the construction contract change order for the RP-1 and RP-4 Generator Retrofits,
Project No. EN22034, to Big Sky Electric, for an additional amount of $158,000, increasing the
contract amount to $333,100 (90%);
2. Approve a total project budget augmentation in the amount of $200,000 to the RP-1 and RP-4
Generator Retrofits, Project No. EN22034, increasing the budget from $240,000 to $440,000 in
the Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) Fund; and
3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order and total project budget increase,
subject to non-substantive changes.

$ 200,000

EN22034 RP-1 and RP-4 Generator Retrofits

If approved, a total project budget augmentation in the amount of $200,000 will increase the
RP-1 and RP-4 Generator Retrofits, Project No. EN22034, from $240,000 to $440,000 in the
RO (10800) Fund.

1000 127107 10800 590000 EN22034

01/11/23
01/11/23

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Regional Plant No.1 and Regional Plant No. 4 Generator Retrofits is consistent with IEUA's
Business Goal of Wastewater Management specifically the Asset Management objective that
IEUA will ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving
requirements, sustainability managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.

On May 18, 2022, the Board of Directors awarded Construction services for RP-1 RP-4
Generator Retrofits, Project No. EN22034, to Big Sky Electric for the not-to-exceed amount of
$175,100.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
the Common Sense Exemption as defined in Section 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation

Statutory Exemption

23014



 

 

Attachment 1 



RP-1 and RP-4 Generator 
Retrofits Change Order 

Recommendation

Kevin Asprer
Senior Associate Engineer - PE

January 2023



2

Project Location

Emergency 
Generator

Regional Plant No. 4



• Upgrade RP-1 & RP-4 emergency generator Electronic Modular Control Panels 
(EMCP)

• Installation and testing of rental temporary generator during construction

3

The RP-4 Project

RP-4 EMCP RP-4 Emergency Generator



• Breaker tripped - no visibility to Operations in SCADA
• Damaged generator power cables feeding RP-4 during a power outage

The Challenges

4

Tripped RP-4 Generator Breaker RP-4 Generator Power Cables



Additional Scope

5

• Generator breaker to be bench tested and cleaned
• Replace 8 sets (32 total) of compromised power and grounding cables 
• Clean underground conduits (8 total) of potential debris
• Temporary rental generator for additional two weeks
• SCADA integration of the emergency generator status and alarms



Description Estimated Cost
Design $30,000

IEUA Staff $30,000
Construction $410,000

Big Sky Electric Construction contract $175,100
IEUA Staff $26,900
Contingency (~10%) $18,000
Construction Change Order (this action) $158,000
SCADA Integration Services $32,000

Total Project Cost: $440,000
Current Total Project Budget: $240,000
Total Budget Increase Needed (this action): $200,000

Project Budget and Schedule

6

Project Milestone Date

Construction 
Construction Contract Award May 2022
Initial Construction Completion January 2023
New Construction Completion March 2023



• Approve the construction contract change order for the RP-1 and RP-4
Generator Retrofits, Project No. EN22034, to Big Sky Electric, for an
additional amount of $158,000, increasing the contract amount to
$333,100 (90%);

• Approve a total project budget augmentation in the amount of
$200,000 to the RP-1 and RP-4 Generator Retrofits, Project No.
EN22034, increasing the budget from $240,000 to $440,000 in the
Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) Fund; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the change order and total
project budget increase, subject to non-substantive changes.

Staff’s Recommendation

7

The RP-1 and RP-4 Generator Retrofits Project is consistent with IEUA’s business goal of Wastewater Management, 
specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to 

meet evolving requirements, sustainability managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.



Finance and Administration Committee 

1D
  CONSENT 

      ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

January 18, 2023

Preserve Lift Station Improvements Construction Contract Award

The Preserve Lift Station was constructed in 2017 by a developer on behalf of the City of Chino
to pump wastewater from a new residential tract of homes to the existing Chino Interceptor
Sewer in Kimball Avenue. The facility is owned by the City of Chino and operated by Inland
Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) under contract with the City.

The lift station consists of two pumps operated through variable frequency drives (VFDs) and is
designed for four pumps at full build-out. Flow rates are anticipated to increase with the
construction of proposed developments in the area. This project will install a chopper pump as
the station's third pump with a goal of providing increased capacity, redundancy reliability, and
reducing rag build-up. The project scope also includes installing a third VFD, programming the
existing PLC to accommodate three pumps, and installing air conditioning units for the VFD
cabinets.
On November 17, 2022, IEUA received three contractor bids from pre-qualified contractors on
the under $2 million list. Tharsos Inc. was the lowest, responsive, responsible bidder with a bid
of $781,000. The bid was below the engineer's estimate of $790,000.

1. Award a construction contract for the Preserve Lift Station Improvements, Project No.
EN23066, to Tharsos Inc., for the amount of $781,000;

2. Approve a total project and FY 22/23 project budget augmentation in the amount of $595,000
to Project No. EN23066 increasing the budget from $455,000 to $1,050,000 in the Regional
Operations and Maintenance (10800) Fund; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract and budget
augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes.

$ 595,000

EN23066/Preserve Lift Station Improvements

If approved, a total project and FY 22/23 budget augmentation the amount of $595,000 will
increase the Preserve Lift Station Improvements budget, Project No. EN23066, from $455,000
to $1,050,000 in the Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) Fund.

1000 127104 10800 501000 EN23066

01/11/23
01/11/23

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Preserve Lift Station Improvements Project is are consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal
of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management and Water Quality objectives
that IEUA will ensure that systems are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving
requirements, sustainably managed, and accommodate changes in regional water use to protect
public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

None.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
the Common Sense Exemption as defined in Section 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Construction Contract

Statutory Exemption

23011



 

 

Attachment 1 



Megan Trott, P.E.

Associate Engineer

January 2023

Preserve Lift Station Improvements
Construction Contract Award

Project No. EN23066



Project Location

2

Preserve Lift Station
City of Chino

Eu
cl

id
 A

ve
nu

e

RP-2

IEUA 
Headquarters



Scope

3

• Install third pump at the lift station
• Install mechanical accessories, electrical and control equipment
• Install a new Variable Frequency Drive
• Remove 3 existing air conditioning units and replace with 4 new units

AA0



Contractor Selection

4

On November 17, 2022, 3 bids were received:

Bidder’s Name Total
Tharsos, Inc. $781,000

Genesis Construction $828,830

SCW Contracting $1,114,000

Engineer’s Estimate $790,000

AA0



Project Budget and Schedule

5

Description
Estimated 

Cost
Design Services (actual) $202,200

Consultant Design Services $127,465
IEUA Design Services (actuals) $74,735

Construction Services $178,566
Engineering Services During Construction $100,566
IEUA Construction Services (~10%) $78,000

Construction $859,000
Construction (this action) $781,000
Contingency (~10%) $78,000

Total Project Cost* $1,239,766
Total Project EN0000000066 Budget $202,200
Total Project EN23066 Budget $455,000
Total Available Budget $657,200
Total Project EN23066 Budget Increase (this action) $595,000
Total Revised EN23066 Budget $1,050,000

Project Milestone Date
Construction

Construction Contract Award January 2023
Construction Completion July 2024

*Total project cost will be reimbursed by the City of Chino



Staff’s Recommendation

The Preserve Lift Station Improvements Project is are consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater 
Management, specifically the Asset Management and Water Quality objectives that IEUA will ensure that systems are well 
maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and accommodate changes in regional water 

use to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

• Award a construction contract for the Preserve Lift Station Improvements, 
Project No. EN23066, to Tharsos Inc., for the amount of $781,000; 

• Approve a total project and FY 22/23 project budget augmentation in the 
amount of $595,000 to Project No. EN23066 increasing the budget from 
$455,000 to $1,050,000 in the Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) 
Fund; and 

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract and 
budget augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes.

6



 

 

Attachment 2 



1 PRESERVE LIFT STATION IMPROVEMENTS
EN23066

SECTION D - CONTRACT AND RELEVANT DOCUMENTS 

1.0 CONTRACT 
THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this ____day of____________, 20__, by 
and between ______________________________________________ , 
hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR," and The Inland Empire Utilities Agency, 
a Municipal Water District, located in San Bernardino County, California, hereinafter 
referred to as "IEUA". 

WITNESSETH: 

That for and in consideration of the promises and agreements hereinafter made and 
exchanged, IEUA and the CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 

A. CONTRACTOR agrees to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner, all
Work required under these Bid Documents FOR
____________________________________________________, in accordance
with the Bid Documents, and to furnish at their own expense, all labor, materials,
equipment, tools, and services necessary, except such materials, equipment,
and services as may be stipulated in said Bid Documents to be furnished by
IEUA, and to do everything required by this Contract and the said Bid
Documents.

B. For furnishing all said labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services, furnishing
and removing all plant, temporary structures, tools and equipment, and doing
everything required by this Contract and said Bid Documents; also for all loss
and damage arising out of the nature of the Work aforesaid, or from the action of
the elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties which may arise during the
prosecution of the Work until its acceptance by IEUA, and for all risks of every
description connected with the Work; also for all expenses resulting from the
suspension or discontinuance of Work, except as in the said Bid Documents are
expressly stipulated to be borne by IEUA; and for completing the Work in
accordance with the requirements of said Bid Documents, IEUA will pay and said
CONTRACTOR shall receive, in full compensation therefore, the price(s) set
forth in this Contract.

C. That IEUA will pay the CONTRACTOR progress payments and the final
payment, in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, with
warrants drawn on the appropriate fund or funds as required, at the prices bid in
the Bidding and Contract Requirements, Section C - Bid Forms and accepted by
IEUA, and set forth in this below.

Total Bid Price $_______________________________________________
Dollars.

and ____________________________ Cents.

Tharsos Inc.

Preserve Lift Station Improvements, Project No. EN23066

Seven hundred eighty-one thousand

Zero



2 PRESERVE LIFT STATION IMPROVEMENTS
EN23066

D. IEUA hereby employs the CONTRACTOR to perform the Work according to the 
terms of this Contract for the above-mentioned price(s), and agrees to pay the 
same at the time, in the manner, and upon the conditions stipulated in the said 
Bid Documents; and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance 
of the covenants herein contained.

E. The Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Forms, Information Required 
of Bidder, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Contractor’s License Declaration, 
Specifications, Drawings, all General Conditions Special Conditions and all 
Project Requirements, and all Addenda issued by IEUA with respect to the 
foregoing prior to the opening of bids, are hereby incorporated in and made part 
of this Contract, as if fully set forth.

F. The CONTRACTOR agrees to commence Work under this Contract on or before 
the date to be specified in a written "Notice To Proceed" and to complete said 
Work to the satisfaction of IEUA __________________ (____) calendar days 
after award of the Contract. All Work shall be completed before final payment is 
made.

G. Time is of the essence on this Contract.

H. CONTRACTOR agrees that in case the Work is not completed before or upon the 
expiration of the Contract Time, damage will be sustained by IEUA, and that it is 
and will be impracticable to determine the actual damage which IEUA will sustain 
in the event and by reason of such delay, and it is therefore agreed that the 
CONTRACTOR shall pay to IEUA the amounts as set forth in General Conditions, 
Section C – Changes to the Contract for each day of delay, which shall be the 
period between the expiration of the Contract Time and the date of final 
acceptance by IEUA, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty.  It is further 
agreed that the amount stipulated for liquidated damages per day of delay is a 
reasonable estimate of the damages that would be sustained by IEUA, and the 
CONTRACTOR agrees to pay such liquidated damages as herein provided. In 
case the liquidated damages are not paid, the CONTRACTOR agrees that IEUA 
may deduct the amount thereof from any money due or that may become due to 
the CONTRACTOR by progress payments or otherwise under the Contract, or if 
said amount is not sufficient, recover the total amount.

I. In addition to the liquidated damages, which may be imposed if the CONTRACTOR 
fails to complete the Work within the time agreed upon, IEUA may also deduct 
from any sums due or to become due to the CONTRACTOR, penalties and fines 
for violations of applicable local, state, and federal law.

J. That the CONTRACTOR shall carry Workers' Compensation Insurance and 
require all subcontractors to carry Workers' Compensation Insurance as required 
by the California Labor Code. 

five hundred forty-five 545



3 PRESERVE LIFT STATION IMPROVEMENTS
EN23066

K. That the CONTRACTOR shall have furnished, prior to execution of the Contract,
two bonds approved by IEUA, one in the amount of one hundred (100) percent of
the Contract Price, to guarantee the faithful performance of the Work, and one in
the amount of one hundred (100) percent of the Contract Price to guarantee
payment of all claims for labor and materials furnished.

L. The CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold IEUA
and its employees, Engineer, agents, officers, directors, servants and volunteers
free and harmless from any and all liability, claims, judgments, costs and
demands, including demands arising from injuries or death of persons (including
employees of IEUA and the CONTRACTOR) and damage to property, arising
directly or indirectly out of the obligation herein undertaken or out of the
operations conducted by the CONTRACTOR, its employees agents,
representatives or subcontractors under or in connection with this Contract to
the fullest extent permitted by law.

The CONTRACTOR further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to,
provide defense for and defend any such claims, demands or suit at the sole
expense of the CONTRACTOR.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The CONTRACTOR and the General Manager of
Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, thereunto duly authorized, have caused the
names of said parties to be affixed hereto, each in duplicate, the day and year
first above written.

M. The CONTRACTOR, by signing the contract does swear under penalty of perjury
that no more than one final unappeasable finding of contempt of court by a
Federal court has been issued against the CONTRACTOR within the
immediately preceding two year period because of the CONTRACTOR’s failure
to comply with an order of a Federal court which orders the CONTRACTOR to
comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board (Public Contract
Code 10296).

Inland Empire Utilities Agency*,   CONTRACTOR
San Bernardino County, California.

By __________________________  By _______________________ 
           General Manager 

_______________________ 
Title 

* A Municipal Water District

Shivaji Deshmukh



 Finance and Administration Committee 

2A 
  ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

January 18, 2023

NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement Construction Contract Award

Due to maintenance issues, the existing siphon located in the North System North Trunk Sewer
(NSNT) was experiencing a build-up of solids and odors. The project was launched to relocate
the sewer and associated siphon to Hellman Avenue in order to provide a long-term solution to
the odor-related issues. The project scope includes installing approximately 3,369 linear feet of
12" sewer pipeline along Hellman Avenue between 5th Street and 8th Street in Rancho
Cucamonga. The project will also abandon the siphon while filling it with grout.

On December 1, 2022, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) received four bids from
pre-qualified general contractors. Ferreira Construction Co. was the lowest, responsive,
responsible bidder with a bid of $2,686,640. The bid was above the Engineer's estimate of
$2,000,000.

During design, a conflict with an existing 2" gas line was identified on Hellman Avenue. To
facilitate construction, IEUA decided to relocate the gas line which increased overall project
costs. A budget increase in the amount of $1,387,853 is being requested to account for the total
estimated project cost.

1. Award a construction contract for the NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement, Project No.
EN20064, to Ferreira Construction Co. , for the amount of $2,686,640;

2. Approve a total project budget augmentation in the amount of $1,387,853 to the NSNT Sewer
Siphon Replacement, Project No. EN20064, increasing the budget from $3,112,147 to
$4,500,000 in the Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (10500) Fund; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract and budget
augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes.

$ 1,387,853

EN20064/NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement 

If approved, a total project budget augmentation the amount of $1,387,853 will increase the
NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement budget, Project No. EN20064, from $3,112,147 to
$4,500,000 in the Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (10500) Fund.

1000 127104 10500 175000 EN20054

01/11/23
01/11/23

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement Project is consistent with IEUA's Business Goal of
Environmental Stewardship, specifically safeguarding public health and the environment. Staff
will control odors at all Agency facilities for the purpose of improving the environment and
being a good neighbor to the local community.

On October 21, 2020, the Board of Directors approved the consulting engineering services 
contract for NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement, Project No. EN20064, to Michael Baker 
International in the not-to-exceed amount of $241,130; and

On October 20, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the collectible work agreement with the 
So. Cal. Gas Company to relocate an existing 2" gas line in the amount of $390,156.10.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
the Common Sense Exemption as defined in Section 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Construction Contract

Statutory Exemption

23010



 

 

Attachment 1 



Megan Trott, PE
Associate Engineer

January 2023

North System North Trunk Sewer Siphon 
Replacement

Construction Contract Award
Project No. EN20064

AA0



Location

2

H
el

lm
an

 A
ve

8th Street

7thStreet

6th Street

Ar
ch

ib
al

d 
Av

e

Vi
ne

ya
rd

 A
ve

Foothill Blvd

5th Street



Scope

3

• Overcome difficulty in maintaining existing sewer siphon
• Installing 3,369 LF of 12” sewer pipeline to replace siphon
• Existing siphon will be abandoned and filled with grout

Siphon along the Cucamonga Creek Channel to be abandonedPotholing along Hellman Avenue



Contractor Selection

4

On December 1, 2022, four bids were received:

Bidder’s Name Total
Ferreira Construction Co. $2,686,640

Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc. $3,413,013

W.A. Rasic Construction Company, Inc. $3,497,833

Mladen Buntich Construction Co, Inc. $4,850,000

Engineer’s Estimate $2,000,000



Project Budget and Schedule

5

Description
Estimated 

Cost
Design Services (actual) $521,179

Consultant Design Services $314,415
IEUA Design Services $206,764

Gas Line Relocation $548,756
SoCalGas Line Relocation $548,756

Construction Services $406,355
Engineering Services During Construction $156,355
IEUA Construction Services (~10%) $250,000

Construction $2,955,240
Construction (this action) $2,686,640
Contingency (~10%) $268,600

Total Project Cost $4,431,530
Total Project Budget $3,112,147
Total Budget Increase Needed $1,387,853
Revised Total Project Budget $4,500,000

Project Milestone Date
Construction

Construction Contract Award January 2023
Construction Completion March 2024



Staff’s Recommendation

The NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement Project is consistent with IEUA's Business Goal of Environmental Stewardship, 
specifically safeguarding public health and the environment. Staff will control odors at all Agency facilities for the purpose of 

improving the environment and being a good neighbor to the local community.

• Award a construction contract for the NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement, 
Project No. EN20064, to Ferreira Construction Co., for the amount of 
$2,686,640; 

• Approve a total project budget augmentation in the amount of $1,387,853 to 
Project No. EN20064 increasing the budget from $3,112,147 to $4,500,000 in 
the Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (10500) Fund; and 

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract and 
budget augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes.

6



 

 

Attachment 2 



1 NSNT SEWER SIPHON REPLACEMENT
EN20064

SECTION D - CONTRACT AND RELEVANT DOCUMENTS 

1.0 CONTRACT 
THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this ____day of____________, 20__, by 
and between _______________________________________________________, 
hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR," and The Inland Empire Utilities Agency, 
a Municipal Water District, located in San Bernardino County, California, hereinafter 
referred to as "IEUA". 

WITNESSETH: 

That for and in consideration of the promises and agreements hereinafter made and 
exchanged, IEUA and the CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 

A. CONTRACTOR agrees to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner, all 
Work required under these Bid Documents FOR ________________________ 
____________________________________________________, in accordance 
with the Bid Documents, and to furnish at their own expense, all labor, materials, 
equipment, tools, and services necessary, except such materials, equipment, and 
services as may be stipulated in said Bid Documents to be furnished by IEUA, 
and to do everything required by this Contract and the said Bid Documents.

B. For furnishing all said labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services, furnishing 
and removing all plant, temporary structures, tools and equipment, and doing 
everything required by this Contract and said Bid Documents; also for all loss and 
damage arising out of the nature of the Work aforesaid, or from the action of the 
elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties which may arise during the 
prosecution of the Work until its acceptance by IEUA, and for all risks of every 
description connected with the Work; also for all expenses resulting from the 
suspension or discontinuance of Work, except as in the said Bid Documents are 
expressly stipulated to be borne by IEUA; and for completing the Work in 
accordance with the requirements of said Bid Documents, IEUA will pay and said 
CONTRACTOR shall receive, in full compensation therefore, the price(s) set forth 
in this Contract.

C. That IEUA will pay the CONTRACTOR progress payments and the final payment, 
in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, with warrants 
drawn on the appropriate fund or funds as required, at the prices bid in the 
Bidding and Contract Requirements, Section C - Bid Forms and accepted by 
IEUA, and set forth in this below.

Total Bid Price $_________________________________________________ 
Dollars.

and ____________________________ Cents. 

Ferreira Construction Co. Inc. dba Ferreira Coastal Construction Co.

North System North Trunk
(NSNT) Sewer Siphon Replacement, Project No. EN20064

Two million six hundred eighty-six thousand six hundred forty

Zero



2 NSNT SEWER SIPHON REPLACEMENT
EN20064

D. IEUA hereby employs the CONTRACTOR to perform the Work according to the 
terms of this Contract for the above-mentioned price(s), and agrees to pay the 
same at the time, in the manner, and upon the conditions stipulated in the said 
Bid Documents; and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance 
of the covenants herein contained.

E. The Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Forms, Information Required 
of Bidder, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Contractor’s License Declaration, 
Specifications, Drawings, all General Conditions Special Conditions and all 
Project Requirements, and all Addenda issued by IEUA with respect to the 
foregoing prior to the opening of bids, are hereby incorporated in and made part 
of this Contract, as if fully set forth.

F. The CONTRACTOR agrees to commence Work under this Contract on or before 
the date to be specified in a written "Notice To Proceed" and to complete said 
Work to the satisfaction of IEUA Four Hundred Twenty-Five (425) calendar days 
after award of the Contract. All Work shall be completed before final payment is 
made.

G. Time is of the essence on this Contract.

H. CONTRACTOR agrees that in case the Work is not completed before or upon the 
expiration of the Contract Time, damage will be sustained by IEUA, and that it is 
and will be impracticable to determine the actual damage which IEUA will sustain 
in the event and by reason of such delay, and it is therefore agreed that the 
CONTRACTOR shall pay to IEUA the amounts as set forth in General Conditions, 
Section C – Changes to the Contract for each day of delay, which shall be the 
period between the expiration of the Contract Time and the date of final 
acceptance by IEUA, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty.  It is further 
agreed that the amount stipulated for liquidated damages per day of delay is a 
reasonable estimate of the damages that would be sustained by IEUA, and the 
CONTRACTOR agrees to pay such liquidated damages as herein provided. In 
case the liquidated damages are not paid, the CONTRACTOR agrees that IEUA 
may deduct the amount thereof from any money due or that may become due to 
the CONTRACTOR by progress payments or otherwise under the Contract, or if 
said amount is not sufficient, recover the total amount.

I. In addition to the liquidated damages, which may be imposed if the CONTRACTOR 
fails to complete the Work within the time agreed upon, IEUA may also deduct 
from any sums due or to become due to the CONTRACTOR, penalties and fines 
for violations of applicable local, state, and federal law.

J. That the CONTRACTOR shall carry Workers' Compensation Insurance and 
require all subcontractors to carry Workers' Compensation Insurance as required 
by the California Labor Code. 



3 NSNT SEWER SIPHON REPLACEMENT
EN20064

K. That the CONTRACTOR shall have furnished, prior to execution of the Contract,
two bonds approved by IEUA, one in the amount of one hundred (100) percent of
the Contract Price, to guarantee the faithful performance of the Work, and one in
the amount of one hundred (100) percent of the Contract Price to guarantee
payment of all claims for labor and materials furnished.

L. The CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold IEUA
and its employees, Engineer, agents, officers, directors, servants and volunteers
free and harmless from any and all liability, claims, judgments, costs and
demands, including demands arising from injuries or death of persons (including
employees of IEUA and the CONTRACTOR) and damage to property, arising
directly or indirectly out of the obligation herein undertaken or out of the
operations conducted by the CONTRACTOR, its employees agents,
representatives or subcontractors under or in connection with this Contract to
the fullest extent permitted by law.

The CONTRACTOR further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to,
provide defense for and defend any such claims, demands or suit at the sole
expense of the CONTRACTOR.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The CONTRACTOR and the General Manager of
Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, thereunto duly authorized, have caused the
names of said parties to be affixed hereto, each in duplicate, the day and year
first above written.

M. The CONTRACTOR, by signing the contract does swear under penalty of perjury
that no more than one final unappeasable finding of contempt of court by a
Federal court has been issued against the CONTRACTOR within the
immediately preceding two year period because of the CONTRACTOR’s failure
to comply with an order of a Federal court which orders the CONTRACTOR to
comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board (Public Contract
Code 10296).

Inland Empire Utilities Agency*,   CONTRACTOR
San Bernardino County, California.

By __________________________  By _______________________ 
           General Manager 

_______________________ 
Title 

* A Municipal Water District

Shivaji Deshmukh



Finance and Administration Committee 

3A 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

January 18, 2023

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended November 30, 2022 is
submitted in a format consistent with the State requirements.

For the month of November 2022, total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of
$467,835,885 reflects a decrease of $2,593,181 compared to the total of $470,429,066 reported
for October 2022. The decrease can be attributed to construction payments, the annual CalPERS
Unfunded Pension Liability contribution, and debt service payment for the 2020A Bond. The
average days cash on hand for the month ended November 2022 decreased from 297 days to 289
days.

The unrestricted Agency investment portfolio yield in November 2022 was 2.400 percent, an
increase of 0.275 percent compared to the October 2022 yield of 2.125 percent. The change in
yield is mainly attributed to market conditions and an increased earnings yield in the Local
Agency Investment Fund and the California Asset Management Program (CAMP) accounts.

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended November 30, 2022 is an
information item for the Board of Director's review

Interest earned on the Agency's investment portfolio increases the Agency's overall reserves.

01/11/23Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of
Fiscal Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment
activities to fund operating requirements and to optimize investment earnings.

On December 21, 2022 the Board of Directors received the Treasurer's Report of Financial
Affairs for the month ended October 31, 2022.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint
Attachment 3 - Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Not Applicable

23003





https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/




https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/








INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

November October Variance

Investments
Agency Managed

Total Agency Managed Investments

PFMManaged

Total PFMManaged Investments

Total Investments

Total Cash and Investments Available to the Agency

Restricted Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits $467,835,885 $470,429,066 ($2,593,181)
**Total reported as of September 2022

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

1



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank (CBB)

US Bank (USB)
(Investment Mgmt.)
(Debt Service)

Petty Cash

Total Cash, Bank Deposits and
Bank Investment Accounts $2,208,473 $2,208,473 $2,208,473 $2,208,473

Investments
CBB Daily Repurchase (Sweep) Accounts

LAIF Accounts

CAMP Accounts

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $129,200,204 $129,200,204 $129,200,204 3.16% $129,200,204

Brokered Certificates of Deposit (CDs)

2



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)
US Treasury Note

3



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Supra National Agency Bond

4



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Investments (continued)
Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $115,518,000 $114,387,572 $114,343,308 1.54% $107,775,984

Total Investments $244,718,204 $243,587,776 $243,543,512 $236,976,188
(Source of Investment Amortized Cost: PFM)

5



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

Total Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

Total Bond and Note Accounts

2020B Construction Project Account

Total 2020B Construction Project Accts $55,411,171 $55,411,171 $55,411,171 2.371% $55,411,171

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies

Subtotal CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies**
**Total reported as of September 2022

CalPERS Deposits

Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits $218,032,539 $218,032,539 $222,083,901 $222,083,901

$464,959,216 $463,828,788 $467,835,886 $461,268,562
Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits
as of November 30, 2022

6



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Other Cash and Bank Accounts

US Bank Pre Investment Money Market Account

Total Cash and Bank Accounts $2,208,473

Unrestricted Investments

CBB Repurchase (Sweep) Investments

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $129,200,203

Brokered Certificates of Deposit

Supra National Agency Bonds

7



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Unrestricted Investments Continued

Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Subtotal PFMManaged Investment Accounts $114,343,308

Total Investments $243,543,511

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

8



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Restricted Deposits Continued

2020B Construction Project Accounts

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies

CalPERS

Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of November 30, 2022 $467,835,885

Total Monthly Increase (Decrease)

**Total reported as of September 2022

9



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

November Purchases

Total Purchases 1,965,000$

November Investment Maturities, Calls & Sales

Total Maturities, Calls & Sales 2,000,000$

10



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

Directed Investment Category Amount Invested Yield

Total Investment Portfolio $243,543,512
Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 2.400%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts Amount Invested Yield

Total Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts $224,292,374
Average Yield of Other Accounts 2.953%

Total Agency Directed Deposits $467,835,886

*Petty Cash

11



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$458,229,570

12



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$243,543,512

13



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

$26,422,221

14



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Agency Investment Portfolio Maturity Distribution (Unrestricted)
$250,117,019

15



16


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Consent Item 1A
	Consent Item 1B
	Consent Item 1C
	Consent Item 1D
	Action Item 2A
	Information Item 3A



